
 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

TOWN HALL 

DUKE STREET 

BARROW-IN-FURNESS 

 
 

 
Wednesday 16th February, 2022 

 

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the  
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise. 

To:   The Members of Barrow Borough Council 
 
Madam Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL to be 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on THURSDAY, 24TH 

FEBRUARY, 2022 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction of the business 

specified below. 

 

 
Chief Executive 

_______________ 

 
Business 

 
1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 

2.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 To deal with any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered 
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  (Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special 
circumstances (which will be recorded in the minutes), and if the Chair of the 
meeting is of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of 
urgency). 
 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda and to consider any dispensations. 
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 
 

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 



 

to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.   
 

4.   MINUTES 
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 25th January, 2022. 
 

5.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 To receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 

6.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later 
than 5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the 
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been received from 
members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public. 

 
7.   REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

2022/2023 AND BUDGET PROPOSALS 2022/2023 
 

 To receive a report from the Executive Committee on the Housing Revenue 
Account 2022/2023 and Budget Proposals 2022/2023 and consider 
recommendations. 
 

8.   BUDGET PROPOSALS 2022-2023 
 

 To consider budget proposals for 2022-2023. 
 

9.   COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2022-2023 
 

 To consider a report on setting the Council Tax for the year commencing 1st April, 
2022. 
 

10.   ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING 2022 AND DATES AND TIMES OF COUNCIL 
AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN 2022/23 
 

 To consider the date of the Annual Council Meeting in 2022 and dates and times 
of Council and Committee Meetings in 2022/23. 
 

 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 
A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at the Town Hall, 
Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Tuesday the 25th day of January 2022. 
 
PRESENT:- Councillor Wall (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Brook, Burns, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, 
Hamilton, McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Morgan, Preston, M. A. Thomson and 
Tyson. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head 
of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jon Huck (Democratic Services 
Manager), Paula Westwood (Scrutiny & Democratic Services Team Leader) and 
Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
63 – Apologies for Absence 
 
In view of the ongoing Covid and Omicron cases in Barrow and Cumbria as a 
whole, concerns had been expressed around attendance at Full Council and 
following agreement between the Group Leaders, a 50% attendance had been 
agreed for this meeting.  The following Members had received a dispensation for 
non-attendance at today’s meeting based on that:-  Councillors Barlow, Biggins, 
Blezard, Burley, Husband, Johnston, Maddox, Mooney, Nott, Pemberton, 
Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Seward, Shirley, C Thomson, Worthington and 
Zaccarini. 
 
64 – Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest. Dispensations were considered under 
Agenda Item 7 (Minute No. 68 refers). 
 
65 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 7th December, 2021 were taken as read 
and confirmed. 
 
66 – Announcements 
 
There were no announcements from the Chair, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 
 
67 – Public Participation 
 
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting. 
 
68 – s.85 Local Government Act 1972 – Dispensation 
 
Following discussions with Group Leaders, the Head of Legal and Governance 
had submitted a report recommending that Council approve a blanket 
dispensation for those Members whose non-attendance had been agreed for the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Council meeting on 25th January, 2022.  The reason for that recommendation 
was for Covid-19 and Omicron safety reasons.  In addition, she had 
recommended that Council approve an authorised absence reason for future 
meetings up to and including the annual meeting in May, 2022. 
 
Throughout the Covid-19 Pandemic, Members had continued to work to support 
their communities and at the same time had carried out Council business online.  
Attendance at a virtual meeting did not meet the requirements of s.85 of the 
Local Government Act and so Members would be at risk of losing Office 
because for technical reasons, the work they had carried out did not count as 
attendance. 
 
Recognising this, Group Leaders had discussed and agreed a reduced 
attendance figure of 50% for the Full Council meeting on 25th January, 2022.  
The proposed dispensation would therefore provide that, for such Members, the 
six month period for non-attendance under s.85 of the Local Government Act 
1972 would commence from 25 January, 2022).  Non-attendance for today’s 
meeting had been agreed as follows:- 
 
Councillors Barlow, Biggins, Blezard, Burley, Husband, Johnston, Maddox, 
Mooney, Nott, Pemberton, Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Seward, Shirley, C 
Thomson, Worthington and Zaccarini. 
 
Council had also been requested to agree, in relation to each and every 
Member, that where failure to attend a relevant meeting at any time up to and 
including the Council’s Annual meeting in May, 2022 was for any of the reasons 
outlined below, then the failure to attend would be a reason approved by the 
Council for the purposes of s.85 to prevent Members from being disqualified as 
a Members whose health or personal circumstances may have prevented them 
from attending in person Council and Committee meetings due to the health 
risks associated with Coronavirus. 
 
Approved Absence Reasons are that the Councillor 
 

a) Had tested positive for Covid-19; or 
b) Was self-isolating or quarantining (whether or not on the instruction or 

advice of any public authority or medical processional) in relation to 
Covid-19; or 

c) Has underlying health issues or other vulnerabilities (either their own or in 
a caring capacity) and did not feel able to physically attend the meeting 
for that reason. 

 
The dispensation was not intended to erode the responsibility of Members to 
attend meetings and Members should confirm to the Monitoring Officer if the 
authorised reason applied to any non-attendance at meetings. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor Callister 
and it was unanimously, 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To approve a blanket dispensation for the Members listed above for whom 

it had been agreed would not be in attendance at the Council meeting on 
25th January, 2022 for Covid-19 and Omicron safety reasons as detailed in 
the report.  The six-month period for those Members whom it had been 
agreed would not attend Council on 25th January, 2022 would have a new 
six month period calculation for attendance purposes commencing on 25th 
January, 2022; and 

 
2. To approve in relation to each Member of the Council in accordance with 

s.85 of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason set out in paragraph 
3.9 of the report, in respect of non-attendance of any Member until the 
Council’s annual meeting in May, 2022. 

 
69 – Establishment of a Westmorland and Furness Joint Committee 
 
The Chief Executive had submitted a report recommending that as one of the 
Councils making up the area which would be covered by the forthcoming 
Westmorland and Furness Council, that a Westmorland and Furness Joint 
Committee be established. 
 
The Secretary of State had made a decision to implement the proposal for two 
Unitary Councils on an East-West geography (Cumberland and Westmorland 
and Furness) and, subject to Parliamentary approval, it was proposed to be 
implemented.   
 
All Councils had received details of the draft Cumbria Structural Changes Order 
2022 which included specific provisions relating to the Cumberland and 
Westmorland and Furness Joint Committees.  It was a requirement within 14 
days of the Order coming into force, to establish a Westmorland and Furness 
Joint Committee.  This Committee would, in accordance with the Order, be 
dissolved on the day following the first meeting of the Shadow Authority for 
Westmorland and Furness Council. 
 
The Cumbria Monitoring Officers had recommended that there should be one 
Host Authority and if meetings of the Joint Committee were to be held at 
different Council venues, that the Host Authority would organise the meetings.  
The Host Authority for Westmorland and Furness had been agreed as South 
Lakeland District Council. 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
Suggested Terms of Reference for the Westmorland and Furness Joint 
Committee had been included as an appendix to the report.  Council had been 
requested to note that further changes may be required following the document 
going through the different Councils’ approval processes.  As such, it had been 
recommended that delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to 
make any minor amendments following consultation with the Leader and Chair 
of Full Council. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
Membership 
 
The Order required the establishment of two Joint Committees with the 
membership comprising of three persons nominated by the County Council for 
each of the Joint Committees and nine persons nominated by the relevant 
District Councils (with each of the Cumberland and Westmorland and Furness 
Councils nominating three persons). 
 
Since the proposed arrangements included the discharge of non-executive and 
executive functions, it was necessary to consider the application of political 
balance. 
 
For Barrow Borough Council who do not operate under executive arrangements, 
the appointments would be made by Full Council with the political balance of 
appointments being two Labour and one Conservative Member. 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor Callister 
and it was, 
 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To agree to the establishment of the Westmorland and Furness Joint 

Committee as detailed in the report and to the Terms of Reference detailed 
in the appendix to the report; 

 
2. To delegate to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Leader and 

Chair of Full Council, the making of any minor changes to the Terms of 
Reference following consideration by other Councils making up the Joint 
Committee; 

 

3. To delegate the functions within the Terms of Reference to the 
Westmorland and Furness Joint Committee; 

 

4. To authorise the Monitoring Officer to make the necessary amendments to 
the Council’s Constitution and to update the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation in Part 3 of the Constitution; 

 

5. To appoint Councillors Brook, H. Edwards and M. A. Thomson to the 
positions on the Westmorland and Furness Joint Committee in accordance 
with the political representation/balance calculation;  

 

6. To note that South Lakeland District Council would be the hose Authority 
for the Westmorland and Furness Joint Committee; and 

 

7. To agree that this Joint Committee would be the Westmorland and Furness 
Joint Committee for the purposes of the Cumbria (Structural Changes) 
Order 2022. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



70 – Officer Delegation Scheme 
 

The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer had submitted a report with the 
purpose of considering the review of Officer delegations ahead of the annual 
review of the Constitution to ensure that they were up to date following the 
recent structural changes. 
 

The proposed revisions had been included as a tracked changes document 
attached as an appendix to the report.  In the main the revisions reflected the 
changes to post titles with a new delegation to the new post of Head of Asset 
Management.  There was an additional delegation to the Head of Development 
Management which had been agreed by Planning Committee on 14th 
December, 2021 and further delegation to the Head of Public Protection and 
Head of Asset Management with regards to s.77 directions under the Criminal 
Justice and Public Order Act 1994, to direct individuals to remove their vehicles 
and to leave land occupied without the consent of the occupier of the land. 
 

It had been proposed that all delegations would take effect once approved, with 
the exception of the delegations to the Head of Asset Management with regards 
to Disabled Facilities Grants, etc. which had been proposed should transfer with 
effect from 1st April, 2022. 
 

A suggested amendment to the Chief Executive’s emergency delegation had 
also been included, to cover Council meetings as well as Committee meetings, 
to provide additional flexibility during the Covid-19 Pandemic for those decisions 
which were not reserved to Full Council. 
 

It had also been proposed that the Deputy Director of People and Place be 
added to the list of Officers who could attest the Common Seal. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor M. A. Thomson 
and it was unanimously, 
 

RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To approve the revisions to the Officer Delegations and Proper Officer 
Appointments as detailed within the report and appendix; and 

 

2. To add the Deputy Director of People and Place as an authorised Officer 
for attesting the affixing of the Council’s Common Seal. 

 

71 – Code of Conduct and Guidance Review 
 

The Monitoring Officer had submitted a report requesting Council to consider the 
Member Code of Conduct, as reviewed through Cumbria Monitoring Officers, 
together with revisions to the Guidance for adoption. 
 

Following a review of the Council’s standards arrangements, Audit and 
Governance Committee had received an update with regard to the Model LGA 
Code of Conduct which had been considered by the Cumbria Monitoring 
Officers Group.  The LGA Code had been published following the Council’s last 
review. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
Best practice recommendations from the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
set out a number of recommendations, many of which required changes to 
legislation and so were the responsibility of central Government to implement, 
however a number were for Local Authorities to implement. 
 
One of the recommendations had been that the Local Government Association 
(LGA) should create an updated Model Code of Conduct.  When Audit and 
Governance Committee and Council had considered the Council’s code back in 
2020, the LGA had still been working on the Model Code and therefore it had 
not been published until December 2020.  The Cumbria Monitoring Officers had 
worked together on the Model Code to make appropriate amendments.  The 
Model Code was promoted as a template to be amended for local 
circumstances. 
 
Since the LGA Code had been published, a revised version had been issued in 
July, 2021 and those revisions had been incorporated into the proposed revised 
version appended to the report.  This Model Code of Conduct with suggested 
amendments had been considered by the Audit and Governance Committee on 
7th December, 2021 and had been recommended for Council approval.  The 
Committee had also considered whether they wished to see unpaid 
Directorships added to the ‘Other Registrable Interests’ which the Council had 
said should be declared and if agreed then the interest form would be updated 
to reflect that. 
 
The Guidance on the Code of Conduct for Members had also been revised to 
take account of the new Code.  A copy of the revised Guidance had been 
included as an appendix to the report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Morgan and it 
was unanimously, 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. That Council adopts the LGA Code of Conduct (as amended) which had 

been included as an appendix to the report;  
 
2. To agree that the registration of ‘Other Registrable Interests’ be amended 

to include ‘Unpaid Directorships’; and 
 
3. To note the revised Guidance which had been included as an appendix to 

the report. 
 
72 – Appointment of External Auditors 
 
The Director of Resources had submitted a report outlining proposals for 
appointing the External Auditor to the Council for the accounts, for the five-year 
period from 2023-2024.  The current Auditor appointment arrangement covered 
the period up to and including the audit of the 2022-2023 accounts. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) was currently undertaking a 
procurement for the next appointing period, covering audits for 2023-2024 to 
2027-2028.  The options available were to arrange direct procurement and 
make the appointment, or in conjunction with other bodies, join and take 
advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. 
 
The report had concluded that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA 
would produce better outcomes and would be less burdensome for the Council 
than a procurement undertaken locally for the following reasons:- 
 

 Collective procurement reduced costs for the sector and for individual 
Authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 
 

 If the Council did not use the national appointment arrangements, it 
would need to establish its own Auditor Panel with an independent Chair 
and independent Members to oversee a Local Auditor procurement and 
ongoing management of an audit contract; 
 

 It was the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, 
registered Auditor.  There was only nine accredited local audit firms, and 
a local procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of 
auditor resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 
 

 Supporting the sector-led body offered the best way of ensuring there 
was a continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium 
and long term. 
 

Full details of the requirements of the Appointed Auditor and the national auditor 
appointment scheme had been detailed in the report.  
 
The PSSA had invited the Council to opt-in for the second appointing period, for 
2023-2024 to 2027-2028, along with all other eligible Authorities.  A copy of the 
invitation had been appended to the report.  Based on the level of opt-ins it 
would enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint a 
suitable firm to be the Council’s Auditor. 
 
If the Council wished to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 
arrangements, it was required under the local audit regulations to make the 
decision at Full Council.  The opt-in period ran from 22nd September, 2021 to 
11th March, 2022.  To opt into the national scheme from 2023-2024, the Council 
needed to return completed opt-in documentation to PSAA by 11th March, 2022. 
 
Vesting Day for Westmorland and Furness Council would be 1st April, 2023 and 
Council had been advised that the Cumbria Chief Finance Officers would all be 
recommending to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments 
managed by the PSAA. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns and seconded by Councillor Hamilton and it 
was unanimously, 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To accept the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the 

sector-led option for the appointment of External Auditors to principal Local 
Government and Police Bodies for five financial years from 1st April, 2023; 
and 

 
2. To authorise the Section 151 Officer to sign the Public Sector Audit 

Appointments’ notice of acceptance on behalf of the Council. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
 
73 – Planning 
 
It was moved by Councillor M A Thomson, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 14th December, 2021 and 18th January, 2022 be received. 
 
74 – Licensing Regulatory 
 
Councillor Callister advised that the meeting of the Licensing Committee 
scheduled to have taken place on 9th December, 2021 and the meetings of the 
Licensing and Licensing Regulatory Committees scheduled to have taken place 
on 20th January, 2022 had been cancelled. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee held on 9th December, 2021 be received. 
 
75 – Licensing Sub 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee 
held on 6th January, 2022 be received. 
 
76 – Executive 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held 
on 15th December, 2021 and 12th January, 2022 be received and that the 
recommendations contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item 
Nos. 9 and 10 as outlined in Minute Nos. 70 and 71 above. 
 
77 – Audit and Governance 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns, and 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held 7th December, 2021 be received and that the recommendations 
contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item Nos. 10 and 11 as 
outlined in Minute Nos. 71 and 72 above. 
 
78 – Overview and Scrutiny 
 
It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held 16th December, 2021 be received. 
 
79 – Questions to the Leader of the Council 
 
No questions had been submitted to the Leader of the Council under notice as 
required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4. 
 
80 – Notice of Motion Under Rule 11 
 
The following motion had been moved by Councillor McLeavy and seconded by 
Councillor H. Edwards, signed and submitted to the Council with Notice under 
Rule 11:- 
 

Fireworks are used by people throughout the year to mark different events, 
predominantly Guy Fawkes including the lead up, New Year and 
Weddings.  Whilst fireworks can bring much enjoyment to some people, 
they can cause significant problems to other people, particularly those who 
suffer from PTSD.  Fireworks are also a great cause of fear and distress 
for many animals including pets, livestock and wildlife. 
 
Affected animals not only suffer psychological distress but can also cause 
themselves injuries, sometimes very serious injuries, as they attempt to run 
away or hide from the noise. 
 
I think we would all agree that the unpredictable loud and high intensity 
noise that fireworks make causes fear amongst pets and livestock, 
hazardous debris found on the ground can also pose hazards if swallowed 
by animals or pets. 
 
We would be failing as a Council and responsible adults if we do not try to 
prevent or significantly reduce the risk of fireworks causing distress, injury 
or anxiety to people as well as death or distress to animals. 
 
The motion – I ask Council:- 
 
(i) To require that all public firework displays within the Borough be 

advertised before the event, allowing residents to take precautions 
for their animals and vulnerable people; 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
(ii) To actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact 

of fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people, including the 
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks; 

 
(iii) To write to our MP and Government urging them to introduce 

legislation to limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90db for 
those sold to the public for private displays; and 

 

(iv) To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to stock quieter fireworks 
for public display. 

 
The motion had been duly seconded by Councillor H. Edwards, a vote was 
taken on the motion and it was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to support the motion. 
 
The meeting closed at 5.56 pm. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 

COUNCIL 

Date of Meeting: 24th February, 2022 

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

The following recommendations are submitted for consideration by the Council:- 
 

Executive Committee – 9th February, 2022 
 

1.0 Housing Revenue Account 2022/2023 
 

1.1 The purpose of the Deputy Director of People and Place’s report was to agree 
a Housing Revenue Account Budget for the 2022/2023 financial year and to 
provide details of the Expected Outturn Budget and balance for the current 
year. (Appendix 1) 

 

1.2 Recommendations:- 
 

 To recommend the Council:- 
 

1. To note the information provided within the report; 
 

2. To note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/2021 would be a surplus 
of £191,890 including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked 
Reserves of £83,760; 

 

3. To note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2021/2022; 
 

4. To agree the basis on which the 2022/2023 draft Budget had been 
proposed in points 3.6.1 to 3.6.4 of the report; 

 

5. To agree dwelling rent increase of 3.1% as outlined in point 3.7 of the 
report; 

 

6. To agree garage dwelling rent increase of 3.1% as outlined in point 3.8 of 
the report; 

 

7. To agree as outlined in points 3.9.1 to 3.9.4 of the report, the other 
additional considerations; and 

 

8. To agree the approach to priorities for the year 2022/2023 raised in points 
3.10.1 to 3.10.05 of the report. 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

2.0 Budget Proposals 2022/2023   (Agenda Item 8) 

 
2.1 The Committee considered a detailed report from the Director of Resources 

regarding the budget proposals for 2022/2023 and the decisions associated 
with budget setting.   

 

2.2 Recommendations:-  
 

To recommend the Council:- 
 

1. To set the 2022-2023 General Fund revenue budget as £8,841,970 
including £148,760 for parish precepts; 

 
2. To agree a Council Tax increase of £5 on Band D which is equivalent to 

2.04% on all Council Tax bands; 
 
3. To approve £16,000 of funding for Cumbria Council for Voluntary Service 

(CVS) for 2022-2023; 
 
4 To agree the total net use of £320,140 of reserves; 
 
5. To note the movement in reserves between financial years related to the 

precepting arrangements for Business Rates of £2,257,900; 
 
6. To note the Council Tax Base at 19,899.25; 
 
7. To note that there are no fee and charges increases proposed; and 
 
8. To approve the inclusion of £817,000 in the Capital Programme as a 

Leisure Centre project line. 
 

 
Background Papers 
 
Nil. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Housing Management Forum 

Thursday, 27 January 2022 

Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/2023 

 
 

Report from:   Jan Sharp, Deputy Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Rebecca Halton, Head of Business Support 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
 

 The purpose of the report is to agree a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 
for the 2022/23 financial year and provide the Expected Outturn Budget and 
balance for the current year.  

 
2.0  Recommendations  

 
2.1 It is recommended that Housing Management Forum recommend to 

Executive Committee that they: 

 

(1)   Note the information provided in the Report; 

 

(2)   Note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2021/22 is a surplus of £191,890  

including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves 

of £83,760; 

 

(3)   Note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2021/22; 

 

(4)   Agree the basis on which the 2022/23 draft Budget is proposed in 3.6.1 

to 3.6.3 of the report; 

 

(5) Agree dwelling rent increase of 3.1% outlined in 3.7 of the report; 

 

(6) Agree garage rent increase of 3.1% outlined in 3.8 of the report;  

 

(7) Agree or note as outlined in 3.9.1 to 3.9.4 of the report, the other 

additional considerations; and 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



(8)   Agree the approach to priorities for year 2022/23 raised in 3.10.1 to 

3.10.5 of the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  
 
3.1 The MHCLG’s policy on rents for social housing permits Local Authorities to 

increase social rents by up to CPI (based on September of the previous year) 
plus 1% each year.  In 2021/22 this permitted the Council to increase social rents 
by 1.5%.  CPI in 2021/22 is unusually high at 3.1%. This would permit the 
Council to increase rents by up to 4.1% (CPI+1%).  However, it is considered 
that such an increase would not be reasonable and it is instead being proposed 
that rents are increased by CPI only at 3.1%.  

 
3.2  The continued sale of Council properties through Right to Buy and general 

increased costs/inflation will remain a challenge for the Housing Revenue 
Account.  Increased costs associated with the economy recovering from the 
Covid-19 pandemic will also bring challenges to the Housing Revenue Account’s 
income over the coming financial year.  Local Government Reform and the 
formation of the new Unitary Authority will likely have implications on the Housing 
Revenue Account moving forward as well, which needs to be considered.  It is 
for these reasons, it is considered an increase in rents should occur however not 
to the maximum permitted. 

 
3.3  The Council will remain focused on controlling expenditure and looking at ways 

to generate income wherever possible.  Mitigating the impact of the pandemic on 
the Service’s income stream will be of paramount importance as we move into 
2022/23.  This will be achieved by the continuing hard work of Officers to engage 
with Tenants to resolve issues and to come to affordable arrangements to repay 
arrears alongside effective signposting to other support services, who can help 
those affected by Covid-19 to rebuild their lives and apply for the necessary 
benefits to support them in paying their rent/reducing their water charges. 

 
3.4 Expected Outturn Budget 2021/22 
 

The outturn for the year forecast a net surplus of £191,890, a revision to the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £83,760. 
 

3.5  Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2021/22 
 

The above is likely to result in the following movement in balances. 
 

3.5.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2021:  £3,770,905 
 
 Forecast underspend on Major Works to year end £   100,000 
 
 Major Repairs Reserve forecast balance as at 
 31 March 2022 £3,870,905 
   

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.5.2   Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 21  £4,388,072 

 Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                    £     83,760 

 Forecast surplus  £   108,130 

 Estimated Balance at year end                                       £4,579,962 

 

 Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2021:                       £1,000,000 

           There is no change expected in the fund balance in year. 
 
3.5.3 Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2021: £8,952,090 

 Forecast Provision 2021/22 £   816,520  

 Provision at year end £9,768,610 

 
3.6 HRA Budget 2022/23 Proposal 
 
 In proposing the budget for 2022/23 – Appendix 1 (to be tabled at the meeting), 

the following factors have been taken into account: 
 
3.6.1 An increase by CPI on rental increase for residential dwellings. 
 
3.6.2 A contingency £50,000 has been retained in the draft budget. 
 
3.6.3 Bad debt provision increased by £157,030 to reflect the arrears of current and 

former tenants. 
 
3.7    Dwelling Rents 
 
3.7.1  Based on the proposal to increase social rents by 3.1% (CPI) for the 2022/23 

financial year, the proposed dwelling rents for 2022/23 (based on an average) 
are shown below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
3.7.2 The expenditure within the HRA is agreed through the democratic process.  

However, occasions arise which result in under and overspends within the 
account. 

 
3.7.3 As agreed previously, the use of the earmarked HRA reserve manages budget 

volatility as and when required within the parameter of the overall agreed budget.   
 

 52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks 

 
Average rent increase 
over 48 weeks 
= £2.58 per week 

2019/20  £73.67 £81.34 

2020/21 £75.64  £81.94 

2021/22 £76.76  £83.16 

2022/23 £79.14  £85.74  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.7.4 The HRA fund balance will be assessed by the Director of Resources.  
 
3.8 Garage Rents   
 

3.8.1  It was agreed at Executive Committee in January 2020 that the Council could 
adopt the approach to increase garage rents in line with dwelling rents from 
2020/21 for the five-year period the new rent policy is in place.  

 

3.8.2  Based on this, garage rents would increase by 3.1% for the 2022/23 financial 
year, the proposed garage rents for 2022/23 (based on an average) are shown 
below: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

    
 
3.9  Additional considerations 
 
3.9.1 Service charges e.g. communal area cleaning 
 

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be adjusted 
as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with no 
additional administrative costs. 

 
3.9.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties 
 

The future funding of service charges has now been agreed and it will be exempt 
from Universal Credit and the charges can continue to be claimed by housing 
benefit. 

 
It is proposed the charges are increased as above 3.9.1 to reflect recovery of the 
cost of provision with no additional admin costs.  
 

3.9.3 Adelphi Court  
 

The block of 12 flats is currently leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme.  The lease was renewed for a further three years with effect 
from June 2021 until 31st May 2024.  An increase of 1.5% was applied to the rent 
reflective of the increase to social rents in general for the 2021/22 financial year 
as agreed.  A new rent review clause has been inserted enabling the Council to 
increase the annual rent in line with social rents on the anniversary of the lease 
each year. 
 

 No 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
Increased 
Revenue 
2022/23 

Garage rate 1 27 £7.58 £7.69    £7.93 

£7,429 Garage rate 2 451 £10.45 £10.61   £10.94 

TOTAL 478 £236,150 £239,652 £247,081 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.9.4 ASB Action Ltd - Service Level Agreement 2022/23 
 

Our aim is to provide homes in good repair and on Council estates where people 
would like to live. 

 
To enable the Housing Service to achieve this, effective management of anti-
social behaviour is imperative. 

 
ASB Action Ltd. provide a specialist service assisting social housing providers to 
effectively deal with such issues, including specialist legal advice at short notice 
for a fixed fee ensuring value for money. 
 
It is recommended that Members agree to renew the annual Service Level 
Agreement with ASB Action Ltd. and suspend the requirement to obtain 
alternative quotes with regard to use of specialist services in accordance with 
Barrow Borough Council’s Purchasing Procedure (September 2017).  

 
The cost of a ten-day Service Level Agreement, including training is £4,785 plus 
VAT.      
 

3.10 Priorities for the Year 2022/23   
 
During the financial year there are several factors which will have an impact on 
the service.  To summarise: 
 

3.10.1 Maintain a balanced Housing Revenue Account 
 

The Government allowing social landlords to increase their rents by up to CPI 
plus 1% over a five year period supports the Service being able to achieve this. 
 
Whilst this is a positive step, the number of properties continues to reduce and 
external pressures increase requiring the need for continuous financial control 
and consideration of the future models of service delivery.  
 

3.10.2 Housing Management System - Cx 
 
The priority for 2021 has been to upgrade the current version of the software we 
have installed on the servers to 21.2 (currently we have 18.8.9 installed).  This 
has required a server upgrade on the internal environment to enable us to move 
to a newer version of the software and has involved a joined-up approach 
between Housing, IT Department, Civica and an external Consultant.  Following 
a robust testing process, two ‘show stopping’ issues were identified, which 
required a ‘hotfix’ from Civica before going live with the new version.  It is 
expected these fixes will be available and applied for testing early January 2022 
at which point, provided successful, a ‘go live’ date will be scheduled with Civica 
to launch 21.2. 
 
The new version will offer a more user friendly and efficient user interface, new 
features and a much-improved tenant portal, which is the self-serve facility 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



offered by Civica for Tenants to access their rent account and other related 
information. 
 
It will also enable us to focus on improving the way we monitor void properties 
within Cx and also record interactions with our customers. 
 
Action:  

Embedding the new version and integrating it’s new and improved functionality 
into Housing processes will be a key priority across the service during 2022/23. 
 
Action:  

The development of the Cx system will continue as a key priority across the 
service during 2022/23. 

 
3.10.3 Welfare Changes & Income Collection  

 
The full service roll out of Universal Credit commenced on 5th December, 2018.  
Members will be aware of the change this has introduced, and officers continue 
to work to mitigate the effect of the roll out. 
 
It is evident it continues to put a significant risk on the income we receive and 
puts continual increased pressure on the Operations Team to mitigate the effect 
to maximise our income; rent collection will be a key priority for staff.  
 
Action:   

Operations Team to continue to monitor impact of roll out and adopt best 
practice to minimise the risk to the income of the service. 
 

3.10.4 Covid Impact and Income Collection 
 

Staff continue to work hard to ensure tenants’ benefit claims, including housing 
benefit, universal credit and alternative pay arrangements are optimized and 
Tenants are kept up to date with the help and support available to them to deal 
with the impact Covid-19 may have had on their health and wellbeing.  
 
Action:  

Staff will continue to monitor arrears and identify those individuals who may be 
struggling financially, referring them on to our inhouse support team or 
signposting them to other agencies who may be able to help where necessary. 
 

3.10.5 Water Rates Collection 
 

The current contract to collect water charges has been extended to 2026 
following agreement at Executive Committee in September 2020. 

 
The commission the Service will receive in 2022/23 is estimated to be 
£165,394.45. 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.11 Summary 
 

The proposed budget provides assurance the Council is controlling expenditure 
to meet the costs for service provision, taking into account the reducing number 
of housing stock and subsequent loss of rental income. 
 
The use of the earmarked reserve provides provision for flexibility in the service, 
together with ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2022/23 
should additional reductions or efficiencies have not been identified.  
 

4.0 Consultation  
 
4.1 Not applicable.  
 
5.0  Alternative Options  
 
5.1 No increase to dwelling and garage rents for the 2022/23 financial year- this was 

not considered a viable option when taking into consideration increased cost 
pressures around utilities, which will impact on operational costs; inflationary 
pressures relating to the Maintenance contracts and the additional pressures on 
the HRA that a unitary model might bring  

 
5.2 Increase to the limit permitted by the Policy of CPI + 1%- it was felt that imposing 

the full level of increase permitted, given the high CPI rate, would have a 
potential negative impact on those tenants who are not entitled to full rent 
rebates or those only eligible for partial rebates. Social housing rents need to 
remain affordable. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  
 
6.1 The proposed Housing Revenue Account budget contributes to the Council’s 

vision “For our Borough to be great place to live work and visit” and will assist the 
Council in meeting the Priority of Place to “Create a vibrant, safe and welcoming 
place where people want to live”. 

 
7.0 Implications  
 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  
 
7.1.1 The recommendation has financial implications as detailed in the report.  
 
7.2 Legal  
 
7.2.1 The recommendation has no legal implications. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



7.3  Equality and Diversity  
 
7.3.1  An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this report. The 

assessment indicated no adverse impact on any of the nine protected 
characteristics of the Equality Act 2010.  

 
Risk  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

 
Funding from HRA 
may not be available.  

  
The Council could be open 
to challenge incurring costs 
outside existing budgets. 
 

. 
HRA budget availability 
periodically reviewed by 
Management Team. 
 

 

Contact Officers  

Rebecca Halton, Head of Business Support email: rhalton@barrowbc.gov.uk                   

Tel. (01229) 876549 

 

Appendices attached to this Report  
 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 
Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022/2023 (to be tabled at 

the meeting) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

mailto:rhalton@barrowbc.gov.uk


Housing Revenue Account Appendix 1

Budget 2022-2023

Actual Base Budget Revised 

Budget 

Base Budget

2020-2021 2021-2022 2021-2022 2022-2023

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance 2,629,642 3,318,910 3,218,910 3,712,430

Supervision and management 3,128,987 3,501,010 3,500,280 3,608,940

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 14,417 16,010 12,510 19,000

Depreciation and impairment of dwellings 1,832,330 1,873,850 1,873,850 1,867,340

Depreciation and impairment of non-dwelling assets 178,159 139,110 139,110 140,300

Debt management costs 11,880 11,990 11,990 16,290

Movement in the allowance for bad debts -39,186 148,600 148,600 157,030

Total Expenditure 7,756,230 9,009,480 8,905,250 9,521,330

Income

Dwelling rents -9,826,642 -9,856,900 -9,856,900 -10,124,360

Non-dwelling rents -384,804 -419,960 -419,960 -395,710

Charges for services and facilities -1,036,764 -1,105,850 -1,114,890 -1,199,790

Total Income -11,248,211 -11,382,710 -11,391,750 -11,719,860

Net Total -3,491,981 -2,373,230 -2,486,500 -2,198,530

HRA services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 292,666 257,060 262,200 284,560

HRA share of other Non Distributed Costs -55 0 0 0

Net (Income)/Expenditure for HRA Services -3,199,370 -2,116,170 -2,224,300 -1,913,970

HRA share of operating income and expenditure:

Gain or (loss) on sale of HRA non-current assets -16,025

Interest payable and similar charges 862,113 886,330 886,330 862,320

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 158,892 145,200 145,200 8,200

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services -2,194,389 -1,084,640 -1,192,770 -1,043,450

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations

Reversal of depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

Reversal of revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment -296,345

Gain on previous HRA Revaluation 337,861

Add the voluntary provision for the financing of capital investment 816,520 816,520 816,520 816,520

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 16,025

Reversal of technical items relating to retirement benefits -282,683 -145,200 -145,200 -8,200

Employer’s pension costs 19,309 19,590 19,590 19,480

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 0 309,970 309,970 293,920

Contribution from Major Repairs reserve -78,270

Contribution to Earmarked reserves 1,619,758 83,760 262,800 0

Contribution from Earmarked reserves -70,910

Reversal of accumulated absences charges -36,056

Total Adjustments 2,194,389 1,084,640 1,192,770 1,043,450

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year 0 0 0 0

Page 23

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council 

24 February 2022 

Budget Proposals 2022-2023  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards) 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report sets out the budget proposals for 2022-2023 and the decisions 

associated with budget setting. 

 

1.2 The 2022-2023 General Fund revenue budget is proposed as £8,841,970 which 

includes £148,760 for the parish precepts. 

 

1.3 The £8,841,970 budget includes one-off items that relate to the prior year results 

of the Collection Fund for Council Tax and Business Rates; the core funding for 

the budget is £11,181,940. 

 

1.4 The Council Tax is proposed to increase by £5 per year at Band D (2.04%); 59% 

of properties are in Band A and that increase is £3.33 for the year, 6 pence per 

week. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 It is recommended that Council:-  

 
1. Set the 2022-2023 General Fund revenue budget as £8,841,970 including 

£148,760 for parish precepts; 
2. Agree a Council Tax increase of £5 on Band D which is equivalent to 2.04% 

on all Council Tax bands; 
3. Approve £16,000 of funding for Cumbria Council for Voluntary Service 

(CVS) for 2022-2023; 
4. Agree the total net use of £320,140 of reserves;  
5. Note the movement in reserves between financial years related to the 

precepting arrangements for Business Rates of £2,257,900; 
6. Note the Council Tax Base at 19,899.25; 
7. Note that there are no fee and charges increases proposed; and 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



8. Approve the inclusion of £817,000 in the Capital Programme as a Leisure 
Centre project line. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Financial Settlement 

 

3.1.1 The key provisions within the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

for the Council are: 

 

 Increasing the core settlement in line with inflation, which means: 

o holding Baseline Funding Levels flat, with grant compensating for the 

freezing of the business rates multiplier; and 

o uprating Revenue Support Grant by the consumer price index, so that 

all Councils are treated on an equal basis across the core settlement 

and under-indexation grant. 

 

 Council Tax referendum limit – up to 2% or £5, whichever is higher, for shire 

districts. 

 

 Lower Tier Services Grant for local authorities with responsibility for lower tier 

services.  The distribution is based on assessed relative needs plus the 

assurance that no authority sees an annual reduction in Core Spending 

Power for 2022-2023.  This funding was awarded for the first time in 2021-

2022 for a single year but has been extended to 2022-2023. 

 

 A new one-off Service Grant has been awarded for 2022-2023 in recognition 

of the vital services delivered at every level of local government. 

 

 There is a new round of New Homes Bonus allocations; the Council has a net 

increase of 65 dwellings (Band D equivalent) above the national baseline and 

is allocated grant funding.  The new homes calculation includes new build 

and long-term empty properties brought back into use. 

 

3.1.2 The funding allocated to the Council is: 

 

 £1,318,497 Revenue Support Grant 

 £3,129,475 Baseline Funding (retained business rates) 

 £257,131 Compensation for under-indexing the business rate multiplier 

 £140,379 Lower Tier Services Grant 

 £215,738 Service Grant 

 £101,559 New Homes Bonus 

 £4,225 New Burdens for ongoing Universal Credit work with Housing Benefits 

and other DWP changes  

 

3.1.3 Apart from the Baseline Funding, the funding allocated in 3.1.2 is paid to the 

Council as grants and the Compensation for under-indexing the business rate 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



multiplier is estimated for the settlement and calculated and reconciled through 

the NNDR claim forms. 

 

3.2 Core Spending Power 

 

3.2.1 Core Spending Power measures the core revenue funding available for local 

authority services, including Council Tax and locally retained business rates.  It is 

a measure of the resources available to local authorities to fund service delivery 

made available to local authorities through the Local Government Finance 

Settlement. 

 

3.2.2 In 2022-23, it is estimated that Local Government will see an increase of 6.9% in 

Core Spending Power – a real-terms or cash increase.  For this Council the 

increase is 6.5%. 

 

3.3 Budget 2022-2023 

 

3.3.1 The proposed General Fund budget for 2022-2023 attached at Appendix 1 is 

£8,841,970 which includes £148,760 for parish precepts.  The service and 

establishment restructure has transformed the division of services and the 

budget will be aligned accordingly. 

 

3.3.2 The budget is balanced with £320,140 drawn from core reserves and £2,257,900 

moving between financial years related to the precepting arrangements for 

Business Rates: 

 

  
 

3.3.3 The core reserve items listed in 3.3.2 are either individually approved at previous 

meetings of the Executive Committee or are drawn from the specific reserve 

established for the purpose.  The exception is the funding requested by Cumbria 

Budget Item Reserve

£82,070 Prior year Council Tax deficit Contingency Reserve

£14,040 One-off external funding Contingency Reserve

£16,000 Cumbria CVS Contingency Reserve

£22,070 One-off staff costs Contingency Reserve

£8,000 Work in default Contingency Reserve

£30,000 Budget variations Contingency Reserve

£67,900 Public buildings planned maintenance Renewals Reserve

£54,100 Project expenditure Transformation Reserve

£56,970 External organisation support Welfare Reserve

£20,000 Excesses Insurance Reserve

(£51,010)

£320,140

£2,257,900 Prior year Business Rates deficit Contingency Reserve

£2,578,040

Reduced by addition to reserves to cover the 2021-2022 

Collection Fund deficit – Contingency Reserve

Core reserves total

All reserve movements

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



CVS of £16,000.  Funding of £16,000 was granted in 2021-2022 and a second 

year of support is requested. 

 

3.3.4 The main changes from the 2021-2022 budget to the 2022-2023 budget are 

shown in Appendix 2. 

 

3.4 Council Tax 

 

3.4.1 The Council Tax base for 2022-2023 has been set at 19,899.25 Band D 

equivalents for the whole area and is split as: 

 

 Barrow unparished 16,158.26 

 Dalton with Newton Town Council 2,374.13 

 Askam and Ireleth Town Council 1,104.95 

 Lindal and Marton Parish Council 261.91 

 

3.4.2 The Council Tax base has increased by 204 Band D equivalents compared to 

last year.  There is an increase in the Band D equivalents for new properties, 

properties brought back into use and changes in the reductions, exemptions and 

changes in Council Tax Support awarded. 

 

3.4.3 The basis for the calculation of dwellings for the Council Tax base is the 

Valuation Office list and the split between Bands is: 

 

 
  

3.4.4 The ratio is the relationship to the Band D Council Tax to calculate the other 

Bands.  89% of properties are below Band D which means the borough has a 

low tax base. 

 

3.4.5 The proposed budget includes Council Tax increased to the maximum permitted 

by the Council Tax referendum principles; this is the Council Tax value assumed 

in the Core Spending Power calculation produced by government. 

Band A 59%

Band B 16%

Band C 14%

Band D 7%
Band E to H 4%

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



 

3.4.6 For 2022-2023 the Council Tax increase is not excessive if it is under 2% or no 

greater than £5.  The Band D Council Tax for 2021-2022 is currently £245.41. 

 

3.4.7 The proposed increase in the Barrow Borough Council element of the Council 

Tax generates £99k. 

 

3.4.8 The increase on the individual bands is shown in the following table:   

 

 
 

3.5 Business Rates 

 

3.5.1 The Business Rate Retention Scheme figures included in the proposed budget 

are based on the NNDR1 form (a formal estimate of Business Rates for 

Government). 

 

3.5.2 The proposed budget relies upon £4,269,800 of business rate income which 

includes all the growth since the retention system began in April 2013.  This 

income is £1,140,325 above the current Baseline Funding determined by 

Government to include the growth since 2013 and the benefits of pooling. 

 

3.5.3 The level of business rate income is not guaranteed; some of the additional 

business rate income may be lost through rateable value appeals and collection 

difficulties, and in later years with the reform/reset of business rate retention – 

there may also be new build or rateable value increases, but these are not 

possible to firmly predict now for the period ended March 2023. 

 

3.5.4  £51,010 of the Business Rate income above the Baseline Funding has been set 

aside into reserves to contribute to potential appeals and collection difficulties 

(income volatility); this is less than previous years and relies upon the 

accumulated volatility reserve to cover any major changes. 

 

3.5.5 The Council continues to be a member of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool and a 

pooling benefit has been included in the budget. 

 

 

 

 2021-2022 
 Annual 

increase 
 2022-2023 

 Increase 

per week 

Band A 163.61£    3.33£         166.94£    0.06£         

Band B 190.87£    3.89£         194.76£    0.07£         

Band C 218.14£    4.45£         222.59£    0.09£         

Band D 245.41£    5.00£         250.41£    0.10£         

Band E 299.95£    6.11£         306.06£    0.12£         

Band F 354.48£    7.22£         361.70£    0.14£         

Band G 409.02£    8.33£         417.35£    0.16£         

Band H 490.82£    10.00£      500.82£    0.19£         

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



3.6 Fees and Charges 

 

3.6.1 There are no increases in fees and charges proposed. 

 

3.7 Barrow Forward 

 

3.7.1 The management fee for 2022-2023 for Barrow Forward Limited is £197,744 and 

£76,844 for February and March 2022 which includes works required to the pool 

cover system. 

 

3.7.2 The management fee would have been £249,200 but Business Rate relief has 

reduced that liability for 2022-2023 only. 

 

3.7.3 The business plan from Barrow Forward identifies investments required to 

improve the experience, the asset, and the future of the company.  It is proposed 

that the Council include £817,000 in the Capital Programme for the Leisure 

Centre – much of this will be spent by the Council directly as major works and 

some will be investments to generate efficiencies: 

 

 Replace Lighting with LED’s 

 Ground Floor Lift Replacement 

 Full Refurbishment of Ground Floor Changing Facilities/Toilets 

 Replacement Sand Filter 

 Replace Gym Equipment 

 Gym Refurbishment/Refresh 

 Replace Pool Tiling 

 Dance Studio Refurbishment 

 Replace External Cladding 

 Perimeter Fencing Replacement 

 Car Park Resurfacing 

 

3.8 Items to Note 

 

3.8.1 The budget assumptions reported to the Executive Committee in November 

2021 that have been revised in the proposed budget are: 

 

 Electricity – the assumption was a 25% price increase, and the budget is 

based upon 38% as advised by the Council’s energy purchaser due to global 

wholesale prices rising steeply. 

 Gas – the assumption was a 10% price increase, and the budget is based 

upon 55% as advised by the Council’s energy purchaser due to global 

wholesale prices rising steeply. 

 Service contracts – all assumed at 2% but latest indices result in budgets 

based on; grounds maintenance and building cleaning at 4.9% and waste 

management at 3.3%.  The actual inflation will be calculated in accordance 

with the contract provisions at the relevant anniversary date. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



 

 

3.8.2 The inflationary pressures estimated within the proposed budget are: 

 

 £149,950 for staff pay including national insurance and superannuation 

 £177,290 for property costs 

 £121,160 for contracted services 

 £8,870 for supplies and services 

 

3.8.3 The full establishment has been budgeted for as: 

 

 General Fund 

o 221 posts 

o 191 expressed as full-time equivalents 

 Housing Revenue Account 

o 49 posts 

o 43 expressed as full-time equivalents 

 Total establishment 

o 270 posts 

o 234 expressed as full-time equivalents 

 

3.8.4 The Council has been allocated £206,000 of Homeless Prevention Grant which 

has been included in the proposed budget; this primarily provides staff resources 

and funds work with partner organisations. 

 

3.9 Reserves and Fund Balances 

 

3.9.1 At the 31 March 2021 the General Fund had £13.3m of reserves which included 

£3.9m of COVID specific grant/relief funding associated with the Collection Fund 

deficits. 

 

3.9.2 At the 31 March 2022 reserves will be reviewed in detail against the outturn with 

any additional income reserved and any transfers between reserves as required.  

Any deficit or surplus balances are dealt with through reserves.  All final 

movements in reserves are reported to the Executive Committee with the year-

end report. 

 

3.9.3 During 2022-2023 there will be some use of the major projects reserve.  This will 

be estimated with the revision of the Capital Programme which will be presented 

at the next Executive Committee. 

 

3.9.4 The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in statute.  The Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing and precepting authorities in 

England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting 

estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement.  Local 

authorities may also ‘earmark’ specific parts of the General Fund reserve; these 

are referred to as Earmarked Reserves. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

3.9.5 The Fund balances for General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account are 

calculated based on a risk-assessment basis.  Fund balances are not usually 

released unless all other usable reserves are depleted.  Balances and reserves 

are created and maintained from revenue resources. 

 

3.9.6 In accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 I confirm that I, 

as the Chief Finance Officer of the Council, am satisfied that the budget 

assumptions and estimates are robust and that I consider the proposed level of 

financial reserves held by the Council to be adequate. 

 

3.10 Associated Documents 

 

3.10.1  The updates that will follow on from these budget proposals are: 

 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Reserves and Balances Policy 

 Capital Strategy (Capital Programme) 

 Treasury Management Strategy 

 

3.10.2 These documents will be presented to the next Executive Committee along with 

a revised budget position for 2021-2022. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The public consultation ran from the 11 November 2021 to the 23 December 

2021.  The budget proposals were presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on the 3 February 2022. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Council must set a balanced budget and set the Council Tax in compliance 

with the Referendum Principles.  Whilst a balanced budget is required, the 

recommendations within the proposed budget are set out for consideration. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which 

underpins the Council’s operations, strategies and Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The body of the report contains the implications relating to the 2022-2023 budget 

proposals. 

 

Legal  

7.2 It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets, a balanced budget, and 

the Council Tax for the following financial year. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



 

7.2.1 Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 

present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the time 

of the meeting an amount of Council Tax is payable by them and has remained 

unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or Council Tax calculation, or 

recommendation or decision which might affect the making of any such 

calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting. 

 

7.2.2 In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 

practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies to 

them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It should be 

noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these matters. 

 

7.2.3 Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, unless 

any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 applied to them 

at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was the subject of 

consideration at the meeting.   

 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendations 
have no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Budget assumptions are 

insufficient. 

Budget shortfall. Best estimates are used 

and are supported by 

financial reserves. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Core expenditure is beyond 

the budget proposed or 

income is lower than 

expected. 

Budget shortfall. Financial monitoring and 

budgetary control. 

 
Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  General Fund Budget 2021-2022 

2 
General Fund Budget 

Summary of Major Changes from 2021-2022 to 2022-2023 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



General Fund Budget 2022-2023 Appendix 1

Actual
Outturn

2020-2021
£

Original
Budget

2021-2022
£

Proposed
Budget

2022-2023
£

Subjective headings:

Staff pay 6,857,575 7,519,280 7,825,410

Pension accounting 771,588 903,000 0

Staff other costs 123,066 73,760 74,500

Transport 71,013 107,530 94,140

Property costs 1,950,183 2,135,430 2,329,180

Supplies and services 28,309,462 3,231,170 2,616,530

Contracts 3,964,884 3,531,870 4,015,690

Housing benefits 15,667,110 15,546,510 15,532,690

Housing benefit grants (15,400,485) (15,397,240) (15,051,760)

External income (6,849,345) (6,337,090) (6,267,440)

Direct costs 35,465,051 11,314,220 11,168,940

Internal income; HRA & capital (810,773) (942,670) (1,045,960)

Capital charges 2,037,479 2,032,390 1,798,870

Indirect costs 1,226,706 1,089,720 752,910

Net Expenditure 36,691,757 12,403,940 11,921,850

External interest earned (131,300) (74,000) (74,000)

External interest paid 584,644 584,650 584,640

Minimum revenue provision 736,276 741,320 505,920

Items excluded from Council Tax (1,810,613) (2,935,390) (1,798,870)

Items included in Council Tax 274,867 280,650 250,470

Movement in reserves 6,033,765 (3,792,850) (2,578,040)

Budget variations 0 30,000 30,000

Net Revenue Budget 42,379,396 7,238,320 8,841,970

Budget financed by:

Revenue Support Grant (1,272,268) (1,279,310) (1,318,500)

Retained Business Rates (4,231,756) (8,881,250) (8,090,230)

Business Rates tariff 5,170,928 5,170,930 5,170,930

Business Rates levy 117,170 538,620 650,200

Business Rates pool (107,043) 0 (325,100)

Business Rates prior year (surplus)/deficit (4,413,566) 3,763,230 2,257,900

New Homes Bonus (11,074) (2,240) (101,560)

New burdens (445,093) (4,390) (4,230)

Other Government grants (32,256,067) (1,625,390) (2,031,720)

Council Tax precept (4,891,580) (4,975,100) (5,131,730)

Council Tax prior year (surplus)/deficit (39,047) 56,580 82,070

Total Revenue Financing (42,379,396) (7,238,320) (8,841,970)

Note: 2020-2021 includes COVID-19 grants and reliefs being received, distributed and spent.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

General Fund Budget

Summary of Major Changes from 2021-2022 to 2022-2023

£

Net Revenue Budget for 2021-2022 7,238,320

Prior year Collection Fund results - calculated each year 1,479,840

Remove COVID-19 emergency funding - single year item (486,010)

Remove Local Government Reorganisation - reserve established (200,000)

Add estimated cost of inflationary pressures for 2022-2023 457,270

Reduction in housing benefit subsidy for 2022-2023 331,660

Reduction in car parking income for 2022-2023 130,770

Reduction in recycling performance compared to estimates 100,230

Bad debt in-year provision reduction for 2022-2023 (121,820)

Other smaller reductions and increases for 2022-2023 (88,290)

Net Revenue Budget for 2022-2023 8,841,970

Total Revenue Financing for 2021-2022 (7,238,320)

Prior year Collection Fund results - calculated each year (1,479,840)

Remove COVID-19 emergency funding - single year item 486,010

Increased income from Business Rates for 2022-2023 (211,450)

Increased income from Council Tax for 2022-2023 (156,630)

Increased New Homes Bonus for 2022-2023 (99,320)

Increased general grant income for 2022-2023 (142,420)

Total Revenue Financing for 2022-2023 (8,841,970)

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council 

24 February 2022 

Council Tax Setting 2022-2023  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The calculation and setting of the Council Tax for the Borough area is closely 

prescribed by legislation.  This report sets out the individual components of the 

calculation and concludes with the formal resolution in accordance with the 

statutory requirements. 

 

1.2 The individual components of the Council Tax are approved through the budget 

setting processes of each preceptor.  The preceptors are Barrow Borough 

Council, the Parishes, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 

Cumbria County Council. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 The Council is recommended to:-  

 
1. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria precepts are 

subject to approval on the 16 February 2022.  Should the precept or 
Council Tax Band figures be changed an update will be provided at the 
meeting; and 

 
2. To approve the formal Council Tax resolutions as detailed in Section 3.8 of 

the report. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  Budget  

 

3.1.1 At this meeting the Council is considering the approval of the 2022-2023 General 

Fund revenue budget of £8,841,970; this includes £148,754 of Parish precepts.  

The budget is the amount required to meet the years estimated expenditure net of 

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



any income raised in fees, charges or service specific grant funding.  The budget 

includes the following precepts issued by the Parishes for 2022-2023: 

 

 
 

3.1.2 The Council Tax Requirement for the Borough is £5,131,725 and is made up as 

follows (note that together the Parish precepts and the General Fund revenue 

budget make up the Net Revenue Budget): 

 

 
 

3.1.3 The legislation requires the Council’s revenue budget to be grossed up to show 

the estimated total expenditure and income for 2022-2023: 

 

 
 

3.2  Council Tax Base 

 

3.2.1 The following Council Tax Bases for the Borough and the parished areas have 

been set for 2022-2023 as notified to the Executive Committee on the 9 February 

2022: 

 

 
 

 

 

Precept £

Dalton with Newton Town Council 127,206

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 17,116

Lindal and Marton Parish Council 4,432

Total parish precepts 148,754

Item £

General Fund revenue budget 8,693,216

Less general grants and Business Rate Retention (6,050,202)

Plus the Collection Fund deficit 2,339,957

Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts 4,982,971

Plus the Parish precepts 148,754

The Council Tax Requirement 5,131,725

Item £

Total gross expenditure 59,163,280

Total gross income (54,031,555)

The Council Tax Requirement 5,131,725

Whole Area 19,899.25

Dalton with Newton 2,374.13

Askam and Ireleth 1,104.95

Lindal and Marton 261.91

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



3.3  Calculation of the Basic Council Tax for the Borough Council 

 

3.3.1 The Council’s Basic Amount of Council Tax for Band D dwellings is calculated as 

follows: 

 

 
 

3.3.2 This Band D rate of Council Tax is, in effect, an average across the Parished and 

Unparished areas of the Borough.  The statutory calculation then arrives at the 

Basic Amounts of Council Tax (for Band D dwellings) for the individual areas as 

follows: 

 

 
 

3.3.3 The table in Section 3.8.4 shows the tax amounts for each Band and Parish in the 

Council’s area. 

 

3.4 Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria 

precepts and amounts of Council Tax 

 

3.4.1 Cumbria County Council set its budget for 2022-2023 resulting in a precept of 

£30,406,054.  The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria set its budget with 

a precept of £5,614,573.  The table in Section 3.8.5 shows the banded amounts 

of Council Tax. 

 

3.5 Setting the Council Tax 

 

3.5.1 The calculated Borough, Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 

Cumbria County Council elements are added to calculate the composite Council 

Tax.  The Council Tax for each category of dwellings is shown in the table in 

Section 3.8.6.  After setting the Council Tax, the Council is required to advertise 

the amounts within 21 days in at least one local newspaper. 

 

3.6 Schedule of precept instalments 

 

3.6.1 The precepts issued by Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Cumbria are payable in equal monthly instalments on dates to 

be agreed with the two authorities.  The Borough Council’s demand will be paid to 

the General Fund by instalments on the same dates.  The three Parish precepts 

will be paid over in full on the April precept payment date. 

The Council Tax Requirement excluding Parishes £5,131,725

Divided by the Council Tax Base for the Whole Area 19,899.25

Gives the Basic Amount of Council Tax £257.89

Area Basic Amount

Barrow (unparished) £250.41

Dalton with Newton parish £303.99

Askam and Ireleth parish £265.90

Lindal and Marton parish £267.33

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



3.7 Instalment dates 

 

3.7.1 Council Tax and Business Rate bills are payable in ten instalments.  The payment 

dates, which will maximise cash flow, are as follows and these may have to be 

adjusted in the event of any delay in issuing bills: 

 

 
 

3.8 Resolutions 

 

Members are recommended to adopt the following resolutions: 

 

3.8.1 It be noted that on the 9 February 2022, the Council calculated the Council Tax 
Base for the year 2022-2023 in accordance with Regulations made under Section 
33(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the Act): 

 
a. for the whole Borough area as 19,899.25 in accordance with Regulation 3 of 

the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulation 1992, as its 
Council Tax Base for the year; 

 
b. for dwellings in those parts of the Borough area to which a Parish Precept 

relates; being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Regulation, as the amounts of its Council Tax Base for the year for dwellings 
in those parts of its area to which one or more special items relate: 

 

 
 

3.8.2 That the Council Tax Requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 2022-2023 

(excluding Parish Precepts) is £4,982,971. 

 

3.8.3 That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2022-2023 in accordance 
with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government and Finance Act 1992: 

 
a. £59,163,280 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council estimates 

for the items, set out in Section 31A (2) of the Act taking into account all 
precepts issued to it by Parish Councils. 

b. £54,031,555 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council estimates 
for the items, set out in Section 31A (3) of the Act; 

 

Instalment Date Instalment Date

1 1 April 2022 6 1 September 2022

2 1 May 2022 7 1 October 2022

3 1 June 2022 8 1 November 2022

4 1 July 2022 9 1 December 2022

5 1 August 2022 10 1 January 2023

Dalton with Newton 2,374.13

Askam and Ireleth 1,104.95

Lindal and Marton 261.91

Page 42

Agenda Item 9



c. £5,131,725 being the amount, by which the aggregate at 3(a) above exceeds 
the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its Council Tax requirement for the year; 

d. £257.89 being the amount at 3(c) above, all divided by the item at 1(a) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the 
Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year (including Parish Council 
precepts); 

e. £148,754 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish Council 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act; 

f. £250.41 being the Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which no Parish precept relates as set out in Section 
52ZX of the Act. 

 
3.8.4 Council Tax for parts of the Council’s Area: 
 

 
 
3.8.5 That it be noted that for the year 2022-2023, Cumbria County Council and the 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria have issued precepts to the Council 
in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each 
of the categories of dwellings as follows: 

 

 
 
 

Band Ratio Barrow
Dalton with 

Newton

Askam and 

Ireleth

Lindal and 

Marton

A 6/9 £166.94 £202.66 £177.27 £178.22

B 7/9 £194.76 £236.43 £206.81 £207.92

C 8/9 £222.59 £270.22 £236.36 £237.63

D 9/9 £250.41 £303.99 £265.90 £267.33

E 11/9 £306.06 £371.55 £324.99 £326.74

F 13/9 £361.70 £439.09 £384.07 £386.14

G 15/9 £417.35 £506.65 £443.17 £445.55

H 18/9 £500.82 £607.98 £531.80 £534.66

Band Ratio

Cumbria 

County 

Council

Police & Crime 

Commissioner 

for Cumbria

A 6/9 £1,018.66 £188.10

B 7/9 £1,188.45 £219.45

C 8/9 £1,358.22 £250.80

D 9/9 £1,528.00 £282.15

E 11/9 £1,867.55 £344.85

F 13/9 £2,207.11 £407.55

G 15/9 £2,546.66 £470.25

H 18/9 £3,056.00 £564.30

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



3.8.6 That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts of Council Tax for the year 
2022-2023 for each of the categories of dwellings: 

 

 
 
3.8.7 Determine that, in accordance with the principles approved under Section 52ZB of 

the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council’s Basic Amount of Council 

Tax for 2022-2023 of £250.41 compared to £245.41 for the previous year is not 

excessive. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendations.  The Borough Council Tax 

is determined by the Council Tax Requirement which comes through the budget 

setting process. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options; the Council has a statutory duty to set the 

Council Tax.  The Borough Council’s Council Tax Requirement is approved as 

part of the 2022-2023 budget setting process.  The other Preceptors demands 

are not subject to the approval of Barrow Borough Council.   

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council Tax is a key aspect of the Borough’s budget financing.  The delivery 

of the Council Plan Priorities relies upon financial stability and resilience; the 

Council Tax Requirement is determined in achieving a balanced budget. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The Borough Council is the billing authority for the area and raises the whole 

Council Tax bills (for all applicable precepts) and collects the income due from 

taxpayers.  All Council Tax income is held within the Collection Fund.  The 

amount of Council Tax collected may vary from the budget and the results of the 

Collection Fund are shared between the major preceptors in future years; the 

Band Ratio Barrow
Dalton with 

Newton

Askam and 

Ireleth

Lindal and 

Marton

A 6/9 £1,373.70 £1,409.42 £1,384.03 £1,384.98

B 7/9 £1,602.66 £1,644.33 £1,614.71 £1,615.82

C 8/9 £1,831.61 £1,879.24 £1,845.38 £1,846.65

D 9/9 £2,060.56 £2,114.14 £2,076.05 £2,077.48

E 11/9 £2,518.46 £2,583.95 £2,537.39 £2,539.14

F 13/9 £2,976.36 £3,053.75 £2,998.73 £3,000.80

G 15/9 £3,434.26 £3,523.56 £3,460.08 £3,462.46

H 18/9 £4,121.12 £4,228.28 £4,152.10 £4,154.96

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



major preceptors are the Borough Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner 

for Cumbria and Cumbria County Council. 

 

7.1.2 The annual billing process is managed by the Revenues and Benefits 

Department.  It is labour intensive and time sensitive, involving external services 

including system support and bulk print and mail.  

 

Legal  

7.2.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a balanced budget and the 

Council Tax for the following financial year before the 11 March. 

 

7.2.2 Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 

present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the time 

of the meeting an amount of Council Tax is payable by them and has remained 

unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or Council Tax calculation, or 

recommendation or decision which might affect the making of any such 

calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting. 

 

7.2.3 In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 

practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies to 

them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It should be 

noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these matters. 

 

7.2.4 Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, unless 

any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 applied to them 

at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was the subject of 

consideration at the meeting.   

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendations 
have no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Council Tax is not set in a 

timely manner. 

Disruption to the 

administrative 

arrangements relating to 

the collection of Council 

Tax that have cost 

implications. 

 

The Council has a legal 

duty to provide a range 

of statutory services 

(such as refuse 

Timely annual billing 

process. 

 

Budget Council meeting 

to set the Council Tax is 

arranged as early as 

practicable. 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

collection and 

homelessness 

prevention) and is not 

absolved from its duty 

because of the late 

setting of the Council 

Tax.  It also has to pay 

the monies due to the 

precepting authorities 

whether or not it collects 

any Council Tax. 

 
Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 9

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council – 24 February 2022 

Annual Council Meeting 2021 Dates and Times of Council and 

Committee Meetings in 2022/23 
 

Report from:   Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 

Officer 

Report Author:  Jon Huck 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report updates members on Council meetings and presents a schedule for 

the forthcoming Municipal Year, including a revision to the date for the AGM. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 Council is asked to:-  

 
(1) Note the changes to the AGM and agree the draft calendar of meetings for the 

new Municipal Year as attached at Appendix 1. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The updated draft calendar of meetings for the new Municipal Year 2022/23 is 

attached as appendix 1. 

 

3.2 The Annual Council Meeting for 2022 was originally scheduled for 17 May 2022.  

However to facilitate meetings of the new Shadow authorities it is proposed that 

this be moved to 18 May 2022 to enable meetings of the new Shadow authorities 

to take place within the required timescale. 

 

3.3 Members are requested to agree the updated draft calendar of meetings for 

2022/23. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Management Team have been consulted on the calendar of meetings. The dates 

put forward are the best options for scheduling these events. 

The Returning Officer for Westmorland and Furness Council (Head of Paid Service 

for Barrow Borough Council) has also been consulted.  

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 10



5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative option is not to revise the calendar, or continue with the AGM as 

scheduled but at an earlier time.  This is not recommended due to scheduling 

requirements for the first meeting of the shadow authority. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Council’s decision making processes achieve the aims and objectives of the 

Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no finance, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. The Council is, however, to have 

regard to legislation which determines how meetings should be held which is currently 

under review by government. 

7.2.2 The Cumbria (Structure Changes) Order 2022 requires the Westmorland and Furness 

Returning Officer to convene and make all necessary arrangements, for the first meeting 

of the shadow authority for Westmorland and Furness to be held not later than 14 days 

after the date of election in May 2022, 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 As highlighted in the report, there is a requirement for meetings to be considered 

in light of scheduling requirements of the Structural changes order and the 

proposals within the report avoids any potential conflicts with members who may 

also be elected to the shadow authority, and officers who may be required to 

advise/attend both meetings. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 There are no equality or diversity issues. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Calendar not agreed Uncertainty around 

meeting dates  

Challenge to decision 

making processes  

Agree draft calendar  

Contact Officers  

Jon Huck, jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 10



Appendices Attached to this Report –  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Draft Calendar of Meetings 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1. Local Government Act 1972 

 

 

  

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

2022 May June July August September October November 

Fri  
  

1     

Sat   2   1  

Sun 1  3   2  

Mon 2 

EARLY MAY BANK 

HOLIDAY 

 4 1  3  

Tue 3  5 2  4 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

1 

Wed 4 1 

 

6 

 

3  5 2 

OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY (2:00pm) 

Thur 5 

SHADOW UNITARY 

ELECTIONS 

2 

SPRING BANK 

HOLIDAY 

7 

OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY (2:00pm) 

4 1 

 

6 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

3 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

Fri 6 2 

PLATINUM JUBILEE 

BANK HOLIDAY BANK 

HOLIDAY 

8 5 2 7 4 

Sat 7 4 9 6 3 8 5 

Sun 8 5 10 7 4 9 6 

Mon 9 6 11 8 5 10 7 

Tue 10 7 

 

12 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

9 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

6 

 

11 

 

8 

 

Wed 11 8 

HOUSING 

MANAGEMENT FORUM 

(2:00pm) 

13 10 7 

HOUSING 

MANAGEMENT FORUM 

(2:00pm) 

12 

EXECUTIVE  

(2:00pm) 

9 

EXECUTIVE  

(2:00pm) 

Thur 12 

 

9 

 

14 

 

11 8 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

13 

 

10 

 

Fri 13 10 15 12 9 14 11 

Sat 14 11 16 13 10 15 12 

Sun 15 12 17 14 11 16 13 

Mon 16 13 18 15 12 

 

17 14 

Tue 17  

 

14 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

19 

COUNCIL (5:30pm) 

16 

 

13 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

18 

COUNCIL (5:30pm) 

15 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

Wed 18 

ANNUAL COUNCIL 

(5:30pm) 

15 

 

20 17 14 

EXECUTIVE 

 (2:00pm) 

19 

 

16 

 

Thur 19 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

16 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

21 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

18 15 

OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY (2:00pm) 

20 

 

17 

 

Fri 20 17 22 19 16 21 18 

Sat 21 18 23 20 17 22 19 

Sun 22 19 24 21 18 23 20 

Mon 23 

 

20 25 22 19 24 21 

Tue 24 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

21 

 

26 

 

23 20 

 

25 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

22 

 

Wed 25 

EXECUTIVE  

(2:00pm) 

22 

EXECUTIVE 

 (2:00pm) 

27 

EXECUTIVE 

 (2:00pm) 

24 21 

 

26 

 

23 

Thur 26 

OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY (2:00pm) 

23 

 

28 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 

(2:00pm) 

25 

 

22 

 

27 

 

24 

 

Fri 27 24 29 26 23 28 25 

Sat 28 25 30 27 24 29 26 

Sun 29 26 31 28 25 30 27 

Mon 30    

 

27  29   

BANK HOLIDAY 

26 31 28 

Tue 31 

 

28  30 27 

 

 

 

29    

 

Wed  29 

 

 

 

31 28 

 

 

 

30 

HOUSING 

MANAGEMENT FORUM 

(2:00pm) 

Thur  30 

 

 

 

 

 

29 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 

(2:00pm) 

 

 

 

Fri     30   

Page 51

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



2023 December January February March April May 

Sat     1  

Sun  1   2  

Mon  2 

BANK HOLIDAY 

  3 1 

EARLY MAY BANK  

    HOLIDAY 

Tue  3 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 

2 

Wed  

 

4 

 

1 1 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT 

FORUM (2:00pm) 

5 3 

Thur 1 

 

5 2 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

(2:00pm) 

2 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

6 4 

ELECTIONS 

 

Fri 2 6 

 

3 3 7 

GOOD FRIDAY 

5 

Sat 3 7 4 4 8 6 

Sun 4 8 5 5 9 7 

Mon 5 9 6 6 10 

EASTER MONDAY 

8 

 

Tue 6 

COUNCIL (5:30pm) 

10 7 

 

7 

 

11 

 

9 

Wed 7 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

(2:00pm) 

11 

EXECUTIVE (2:00pm) 

8 

EXECUTIVE (2:00pm) 

8 

EXECUTIVE (2:00pm) 

12 10 

 

Thur 8 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

12 9 

 

9 

 

13 11 

 

Fri 9 13 10 10 14 

 

12 

Sat 10 14 11 11 15 13 

Sun 11 15 12 12 16 14 

Mon 12 16 13 13 

 

17 

 

15 

Tue 13 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

17 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

14 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

14 

PLANNING (2:30pm) 

18 

 

16  

) 

Wed 14 

EXECUTIVE (2:00pm) 

18 

 

15 15 

 

19 17 

 

Thur 15 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 

(2:00pm) 

19 

LICENSING/ 

REGULATORY (2:00pm) 

16 

 

16 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 

(2:00pm) 

20 18 

 

Fri 16 20 17 17 21 

 

19 

Sat 17 21 18 18 22 20 

Sun 18 22 19 19 23 21 

Mon 19 23 20 20 24 

 

22 

 

Tue 20 

 

24 

COUNCIL (5:30pm) 

21 21 

 

25 23 

 

Wed 21 

 

25 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT 

FORUM (2:00pm) 

22 

 

22 26 24 

 

Thur 22 

 

26 

 

23 

 

23 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

(2:00pm) 

27 

 

25 

 

Fri 23 

 

27 24 24 

 

28 26 

Sat 24 

 

28 25 25 29 27 

Sun 25 

CHRISTMAS DAY 

29 26 26 30 28 

Mon 26  

BOXING DAY 

30 27 27 

 

 29  

SPRING BANK HOLIDAY 

Tue 27  

BANK HOLIDAY 

31 

 

28 28 

COUNCIL (5:30pm) 

 

 

30 

 

Wed 28  

TOWN HALL CLOSED 

  29  31 

Thur 29 

TOWN HALL CLOSED 

  30   

Fri  30 

TOWN HALL CLOSED 

  31 

BBC CEASES TO EXIST  

  

Sat 31      

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2022/2023 AND BUDGET PROPOSALS 2022/2023
	HRA BUDGET
	Housing Revenue Account Budget 2022-23
	HRA Draft Budget Appendix 1


	8 BUDGET PROPOSALS 2022-2023
	Enc. 1 for Budget Proposals 2022-2023
	Enc. 2 for Budget Proposals 2022-2023

	9 COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2022-2023
	10 ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING 2022 AND DATES AND TIMES OF COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN 2022/23
	Year Planner 2022-2023 - Rev 2 - FINAL


